CITY OF TUCUMCARI
MINUTES
September 24, 2009

The Tucumcari City Commission met for their reguiaeeting on Thursday, September
24, 2009, at 6:00 p.m. in the City Commission Charab Members present constituting
a quorum were Antonio Apodaca, Jim Lafferty, Roldenmpkin, Jimmy Sandoval, and
Jim Witcher.

City staff members present were Bobbye Rose, Cianadger; Mike Cherry, Assistant
City Manager; Christine Dougherty, City Clerk; DoBgwers, Community Development
Director; Marty Garcia, Finance Director; Vicki &td, Deputy Finance Director; Scott
Simpson, Recreation Director; Charlie Sandoval, aW&uperintendent; Alex Madrid,
Streets and Sanitation Superintendent; and ClayaBeector of Human Resources.

Mr. Jim Witcher, Reverend of the First Christianu@h, gave the invocation and
Commissioner Lafferty led the group in the Pledf@ltegiance.

Consideration of Changes or Deletions to Agenda

City Clerk, Christine Dougherty asked that item Mater and Sewer Project
Identification under City Manager’'s Report be deleted. City Mpama Bobbye Rose
asked that Item BQrdinance 1073 be removed if Mr. Pat Vanderpool, Economic
Development Director does not attend the meeting.

Iltems from Commissioners

Commissioner Lumpkin thanked all those in attendaioc coming to the meeting and
stated that he encouraged people to address then{Ssion.

Mayor Pro Tem Witcher stated that a date for wagssgons for the Animal Ordinance
and Wastewater Re-Use need to be set.

Commissioners Sandoval and Lafferty had no comments

Comcast Presentation

Mayor Apodaca called on Mr. Spenser DeBord from €ash Communications to the
podium. Mr. DeBord thanked the Commission for hgvhim at the meeting. Mr.
DeBord explained that through the Comcast FoundaGomcast Cares Day is held
annually. In April, the local project for Comca3ares was to improve the City softball
fields. In addition, Mr. DeBord explained, the BIk.odge, Pacheco Trucking, Steel
Heating, Subway, Bell Storage and Allsups donatedhe effort. There were 85
volunteers present that worked to make Field Thussble again. The fence and the
backstops were replaced. Additionally the dugobiisachers and trash receptacles were
painted. As a result of the volunteerism, the Cash&oundation presented the City with
$1900 for the Recreation Department. Mr. DeBoatiest that 100% of the local Comcast
staff participated in the effort.



Scott Simpson, Recreation Director stated that wés a worthwhile effort for the
Recreation Department. Mr. Simpson said that Ceimeaks each year for project
suggestions and they are always very receptiveelpirty the Recreation Department.
The field is now in good usable shape, thanks tm€ast and the other donors.

Mr. DeBord also added that Mesalands Community €gell partners with Comcast
through their non-profit 501 (C) (3) foundation.

Approval of Minutes

Commissioner Lumpkin moved to approve the minuteth® August 27, 2009 Regular
Meeting. Mayor Pro Tem Witcher seconded the motiBoll Call:

Lafferty Apodaca Lumpkin Witcher Sandoval
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Commissioner Lumpkin moved to approve the minuteth® September 8, 2009 Public
Hearing. Mayor Pro Tem Witcher seconded the motigoll Call:

Apodaca Lumpkin Witcher Sandoval Lafferty
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Commissioner Lumpkin moved to approve the minutéshe September 10, 2009
Regular Meeting. Mayor Pro Tem Witcher secondedntiotion. Roll Call:

Lumpkin Witcher Sandoval Lafferty Apodaca
Yes Yes Yes Yes Abstain

Mayor Pro Tem Witcher moved to approve the minofebe September 24, 2009 Public
Hearing. Commissioner Lumpkin seconded the motiRall Call:

Witcher Sandoval Lafferty Apodaca Lumpkin
Yes Yes Yes Abstain Yes

Approval of Vouchers

A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Witcher and sded by Commissioner
Lumpkin to approve the City vouchers. Roll Call:

Sandoval Lafferty Apodaca Lumpkin Witcher
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Items from Citizens

Mayor Apodaca asked if anyone would like to addtbesCommission. Mr. Jack Smith
approached the podium to address the Commission.SMith stated that he brought a
packet in for the Commissioners and the City Manageeview. Mr. Smith stated that



the packet contained a map showing where his fartocated that he is currently using
City Re-Use water on. Mr. Smith stated that hisugefor the water system is temporary
and he would like to make it permanent. Mr. Snsitmap shows the location of the
proposed monitoring wells. Mr. Smith needs a commmant from the City before he
proceeds with drilling of the wells. Mr. Smith enraged the City to proceed as he is
not aware of any expenses to the City and he i;mga®10 per acre foot of water. Mr.
Smith also cautioned that others interested ingusause water need to look closely at
the proposition as the cost of his permit was $6500

Commissioner Lumpkin asked Mr. Smith how long hesmpit is in effect. Mr. Smith

stated the permit is good for five years. Mr. 3mitent on to say that the permit
application was difficult to understand and he Hhadcall the permitting office for

clarification and that the permit only allows for certain amount of water to be
discharged.

Proclamations, Memoarials, Or Petitions

Mayor Apodaca called Susan Lease, ASAP Coordinatdine podium so that he could
present her with the Family Day Proclamation. Msase stated that each year ASAP
encourages the celebration of Family Day where lfamisit down and eat dinner
together. The Proclamation declared Septembe2@® as Family Day.

Ordinances and Resolutions

Mayor Apodaca called upon Doug Powers for the fiestding of Ordinance 1072. Mr.
Powers explained that this ordinance is part of dlmulus package funding for the
Wastewater Treatment Plant. The ordinance is reduior the loan portion of this
package. Ms. Rose explained that the loan isy@a0loan with zero percent interest.

Commissioner Lafferty asked if the City posseskesmieans to pay back the loan. Ms.
Rose responded that utility rates may have to bee@ased in order to meet the debt
requirement. Ms. Rose further explained that MaulPCassidy is reviewing the rate

structure. Ms. Rose also stated that approvahisfis not a final commitment to this

loan.

Commissioner Lumpkin made a motion to approve its¢ feading of Ordinance 1072, a
loan agreement with the New Mexico Environment Depant for Wastewater
Treatment Plant construction loan funds with agpal not to exceed $100,000. Mayor
Pro Tem Witcher seconded the motion. Roll Call:

Lafferty Apodaca Lumpkin Witcher Sandoval
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Ms. Rose presented Resolution 2009-35, regardibipBA loan/grant for Wastewater
Treatment Plant and Lift Station rehabilitation. sMRose explained that this is a
$1,303,000 loan with the remainder coming in thenfof a grant. The total project is $4
million. Ms. Rose explained that Mr. Cassidy waime to present to the Commission
how it will be possible for the City to repay treah portion. Ms. Rose encouraged that
the resolution be passed so that the money wilbedost.



Commissioner Lumpkin made a motion to approve Rggol 2009-35, a USDA
loan/grant for Wastewater Treatment Plant and &ifition rehabilitation. Mayor Pro
Tem Witcher seconded the motion. Roll Call:

Lumpkin Witcher Sandoval Lafferty Apodaca
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Mr. Doug Powers then presented Resolution 200%pproving New Mexico DOT co-
op funds. Mr. Powers explained that the DOT hatuced the funding they are
dispersing this year. This funding will be $43,9%with $14,661.53 City match for a
total project of $58,646.13. Mr. Powers explaitledt this funding will be used for the
side street project between Second and Third strebtr. Powers stated that with the
completion of this project, all the side streetssgen First and Third streets will be re-
paved. Mr. Powers stated that the side streetdimally be addressed with this stimulus
finding.

Mr. Charlie Sandoval, Water Superintendent staked he and Mr. Powers have been
working together in order to ensure that projectsuo in conjunction so that water lines
are replaced and new pavement is then laid on to@w lines. Mr. Sandoval further
explained that he and Mr. Powers are working witd City Manager to get services
changed over, and moving funds to get streets bynCRark re-paved. Mr. Sandoval
stated that the goal is to deal with the problemets first. Mr. Powers stated that not all
the streets in the City qualify for MAP or CDBG fiing for re-paving. The overall
strategy has been to address the streets througi®@ity that are in the most need of
repair.

Mr. Powers presented the Commission with a colatedomap showing which streets
were recently re-paved and which are in need gfareement. Mr. Lafferty asked why
Lake Street from the Tucumcari Inn to the Yelloweight building is not on the map.
Mr. Sandoval responded that the water lines und&elStreet are old but they are there.
He stated that water lines have to be addresssd thien sewer lines and finally paving.
Mr. Sandoval stated that it takes about three yé&araddress all infrastructures in a
particular area.

Commissioner Sandoval asked why Third Street wasaddressed until now. Mr.
Powers indicated that the paving schedule was dpedlfrom the last street assessment.
Mr. Sandoval also stated that it makes no sense-pmave a street if the infrastructure
underneath it has not been addressed. Mr. Sandexpalained that water line
replacement comes out of his department’s operatindget so he has to budget
carefully.

Commissioner Lafferty stated that his constituent®istrict Five are still interested in
creating a Public Improvement District for theiear Mr. Lafferty stated that the people
in his district want to use their taxes to payriew streets and utilities. Most of the map
in District Five is red on Mr. Power's map indicagi that they are in disrepair. Mr.
Lafferty explained that his district does not gfyafor grant funds to repair their streets
because the median income is too high. Commissi8aadoval stated that he agrees
that the streets indicated on the map as mostdd o&repair need to be addressed.



Mayor Pro Tem Witcher stated that this money did just drop on the City. Mr.

Witcher explained that Doug Powers and Charlie Saaldheard about the stimulus
finding being available and they worked hard andewawarded the funding. Mr.
Witcher stated that these men should be thanketh&r work. Ms. Rose agreed that
Mr. Powers and Mr. Sandoval should be commendettieas developed a well thought
out plan.

Commissioner Lafferty asked if any cash match wélrequired. Ms. Rose responded
that a 25% match is required but that in can be alrabst entirely with in-kind match
funding.

Mayor Apodaca asked Ms. Rose if she recommendowaioir this resolution. Ms. Rose
responded in the positive. Mayor Pro Tem Witchadena motion to approve Resolution
2009-36 accepting participation in the 2009-20106pevative agreement program with
the New Mexico DOT and assuring that sufficientalomatching funds are available.
Commissioner Lumpkin seconded the motion. Roll:Cal

Witcher Sandoval Lafferty Apodaca Lumpkin
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

City Manager’'s Report

Ms. Rose explained that the Department of FinandmiAistration approved the City
Budget for fiscal 2009-2010. Ms. Rose further akpd that the DFA requires that
acknowledgement of this needs to appear in the tesnu

Mayor Apodaca then read the letter from the DFAeatiag the budget. Mr. Apodaca
then stated that because the Commission is resperfer the financial affairs of the
City, it is not micro management when the Commissiemands numbers.

Commissioner Lafferty made a motion acknowledgihg DFA approved budget for
fiscal 2009-2010. Mayor Pro Tem Witcher secondiedeimotion. Roll Call:

Sandoval Lafferty Apodaca Lumpkin Witcher
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Ms. Rose then called on Marty Garcia, Finance Doreto give the Financial Report for
the month of August, 2009. Mr. Garcia stated tiesupplied the Commission with the
Gross Receipts Tax and Budget reports. Mr. Gapiogized for not having the cash
report for the Commission. Mr. Garcia went on xplain that the utility program was
updated and the changes had caused some issues.

Mr. Garcia stated that the GRT is up 2.77% fromttiree year average. He also said
there has been a recent increase in retail trade. Garcia stated that the water and
wastewater projects need to be budgeted now thaalacumbers have been obtained.
Mr. Garcia said he is trying to watch line itemsldhat the unemployment insurance line
item is already spent in most departments. Mrcfassaid he is keeping a close eye on
the EMS budget. He stated the department billeat 200,000 which is good if all of it



is collected. The Senior Citizen Department isndoivell as is the Airport. Mr. Garcia
stated that the other departments are operatignastandard parameters.

Mr. Garcia explained that the utility billing systehas been converted resulting in many
changes and ability to customize the system. Tiligywills are ready to go out a bit
late. The bills will be mailed on or around theé'21

Mr. Garcia stated that the Finance Department kpsreenced lots of illness and injury.
Everyone has been pitching in and helping but & been difficult to keep up with the
daily activities.

Mayor Pro Tem Witcher thanked Mr. Garcia. Comnussr Lumpkin asked if there
would be any chance of getting the financial repdi¢fore the meeting. Mr. Garcia
stated that the budget report could be deliverddrédahe meeting and he would try to
get the other reports to the Commission beforartaeting.

Ms. Rose then went over the Department Head rep&te stated that she will have one
Department Head give a detailed oral report toGbeaxmission each month so that they
can stay abreast of activities in each department.

Ms. Rose stated that the Great American Cleanappsoaching and Ms. Estrada, Code
Enforcement Officer will be at the next meetingréguest a free dump day. Ms. Rose
also reminded the Commission that there is $10,j@0€he Economic Development
Corporation budget for cleanup of properties.

Ms. Rose reported that an RFP will be issued falenmary services for animal
euthanasia.

Ms. Rose also informed the Commission that fres@®al flu shots will be given at the
Fire Department on October 13 from 1 p.m. to 3 p.m.

Ms. Rose also explained that a new agenda proselssing implemented with a new
form which should streamline the process and gehdas to the Commissioners more
timely.

Ms. Rose reminded the Commission of the Wastewbtic Hearing on October 6 at 7
pm.

Ms. Rose stated that the CDM contract was revieaveimodified by the attorney and is
ready to be signed.

Ms. Rose also informed the Commission that FEMA bel visiting the City.

Mayor Apodaca stated that he is unable to commneeting dates in October because of
the health issues his mother is experiencing.

Mayor Pro Tem Witcher suggested that work sessatesdbe set. It was decided to have
work sessions on Monday October 5 and Tuesday @ct6bat 5:30 to discuss the



Wastewater Re-Use issues and the Animal Ordinamde. Witcher asked the Clerk to
have all the notes to the Commission by the Frigefpre the work sessions.

Ms. Rose stated that the Commissioners receivedpy of the Landfill Feasibility
Report in their packets. Ms. Rose stated that @orEnvironmental recommends a
landfill in lieu of a transfer station. Additiorhgl Ms. Rose stated that tipping fees will
have to be increased. Mayor Apodaca asked foificitron on the recommendation.
Ms. Rose clarified that the recommendation wasa@aay with a transfer station. Mr.
Apodaca asked if Santa Rosa is still bringing tihefuse to the City landfill. Ms. Rose
stated that currently Santa Rosa is not dumpinghén City landfill, however she is
negotiating with them. Mr. Witcher suggested tihdg. Rose check with Clayton
regarding their dumping. Ms. Rose stated thathsisea list of possible landfill customers
she is working with.

Ms. Rose stated that the Environment Departmelatoising over the specifications and
plans for the Sands Dorsey building. Ms. Rosehtrrtexplained that because it is a
blighted area, funds will be harder to get. Mss®atated that CDBG funds may be a
possibility for use in abating the building. May®podaca commented that the City has
a good history with the CDBG program.

Mr. Witcher stated that he received a call fromanan named Mary Clark regarding the
Sands Dorsey building. When he attempted to allbdack, he had the wrong number.
He encouraged anyone who knows her to have hehicalhgain.

Mayor Apodaca asked if Mainstreet funds could bedusr the Sands Dorsey. Ms. Rose
responded in the negative. Commissioner Laffesiyed what the options are if CDBG
funds cannot be obtained. Mr. Powers stated thatvfield funds are earmarked for
cleanup of contaminated areas and might be a goboho Mr. Powers stated that he has
applied for Brownfield funds in the past but thet@omination levels are different in this
project.

Mayor Apodaca asked if Superfunds could be used. Pdwers stated that would be a
possibility and if it is approved by the City Mamaighe would be happy to explore the
possibility. Commissioner Lafferty suggested tihé City issue an RFP with a

stipulation that the winning bidder is responsifide finding the funds to complete the

project. Mr. Lafferty asked what needs to happanttie City to do this. Mr. Powers

stated that a beginning budget will be necesshty. Rose stated that the possibility will
be explored and a report will be given at the sdcOgtober meeting. Commissioner
Lafferty stated that an RFP, Superfunds, Brownfialitd CDBG opportunities should all

be explored.

Mayor Pro Tem Witcher asked if the dilemma witht&tAgencies regarding tearing
down the building still exists. Ms. Rose respondedthe negative. Commissioner
Lafferty asked if the City has something in writirgm the Historical Society regarding
the building. Ms. Rose responded in the negatiggng that we only have the minutes
from one meeting where the building was discusddd. Lafferty stated that we do not
have anything that says we can not tear down tlidilbg. Ms. Rose responded in the
negative stating that she believes we are onlyoresple for keeping the Historical
Society in the loop regarding what happens withlibéding. Ms. Rose reminded the



Commission that public funds cannot be used to tkawn an historic building.
Commissioner Lafferty stated that the City needaetbing in writing from the Historic
Society. Mr. Lafferty expressed concern due tof#twe that the ordinance passed by the
City stated that the Sands Dorsey is a health afelysissue that we need to take care of.
Ms. Rose stated that the Mainstreet office is logkior grant funds to be used to fix or
stabilize the building.

Ms. Rose then presented the draft of the FinarRudiicy to the Commission for their
information. Ms. Rose asked if the Commission wamer to enact the policy as the
Manager or if they want to pass a resolution ornangice approving the policy. Ms. Rose
stated that there are still a few problems with dre&ft version of the policy. Ms. Rose
said that the policy requires that the budget medmgin earlier. Mr. Witcher stated that
the policy is a management tool. Commissioner draff stated that it needs to be a
policy so that through different managers and guttié policy can be implemented. Mr.
Lafferty stated that he hopes Ms. Rose will stathwtie City for a long time, but the
policy should stay in place regardless of who tliiy ®lanager may be. Mr. Lafferty
further explained that in audit reports, the Cigisltbeen cited as lacking internal control
features. Mr. Lafferty stated that he feels thécgoshould be adopted in an official
capacity. Mayor Apodaca and Commissioner Sandstedtd that they agreed.

Commissioner Lafferty made a motion that the Firfeolicies should be reviewed and
presented to the Commission in either Resolutio®inance form. Mayor Pro Tem
Witcher seconded the motion. Roll Call:

Witcher Sandoval Lafferty Apodaca Lumpkin
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Ms. Rose then presented the Administrative/Commris8etreat. Ms. Rose asked for a
suggested date for the retreat. Mutual consen& fdate was not achieved so Ms. Rose

stated she would poll the Commissioners to detezraidate.

Bids and Contracts

Mayor Apodaca called upon Ms. Rose to present #seraent agreement between the
City and Mr. Abel Aragon. Ms. Rose stated thatdmplete the Wastewater project, an
easement is required to run a new sewer line advivsé\ragon’s property. Ms. Rose
explained that she had conferred with the attoroaythis issue. Mr. Aragon is
requesting that in exchange for the easement, queests sewer fees waived for the rest
of his life as well as assurance that no fencestractures will be put on his property in
conjunction with this project.

Commissioner Lafferty expressed disappointmenttti@aattorney had been hired to deal
with the issue and that his first letter stated ti@hing will be granted in exchange for
the easement and the second letter recommendsdmeer. Ms. Rose stated that this
easement needs to be secured so that work camwerdn the project. Mr. Lafferty
stated that he is disappointed in the attorney.



Mayor Pro Tem Witcher made a motion to approveetigement agreement between the
City and Mr. Able Aragon. Commissioner Sandovaloseled the motion. Roll Call:

Apodaca Lumpkin Witcher Sandoval Lafferty
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Ms. Rose then presented the JAG grant. Ms. Ra@gedsthat this is the second JAG
agreement for the City this fiscal year and thaie€Hatcher could not be at this meeting
however, he recommends approval of the agreemdayor Pro Tem Witcher stated that
this is an agreement that the Commission approvexy gear. Mayor Pro Tem Witcher
made a motion to approve the Justice Assistancat@®m@gram Award. Commissioner
Lumpkin seconded the motion. Roll Call:

Lumpkin Witcher Sandoval Lafferty Apodaca
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Mr. Powers then reported on the bids to re-roofrthieoad depot building. Mr. Powers
stated that the plans were submitted and the emgneeommends that the City reject all
bids as none of them were complete. Commissioaéfetty asked if an engineer was
paid and the job was not completed. Mr. Powergdtdnat the City will not have to pay
the second time around.

Mayor Pro Tem Witcher make a motion to reject akilRDepot Re-roof bids.
Commissioner Lafferty seconded the motion. Roll:Ca

Witcher Sandoval Lafferty Apodaca Lumpkin
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Old Business

Mayor Apodaca acknowledged reading the April 2, 200inutes of the Tucumcari
Senior Citizens Advisory Board.

New Business

Mayor Apodaca called on Mr. Garcia to present se@ommission regarding the internal
audit process. Mr. Garcia explained that therenamay different types of water meters.
Mr. Garcia stated that his department wants todmsistent. He said that they plan to go
through every account to make sure each meterrisulated correctly in the billing
system.

Mr. Garcia stated that every account that is natdobilled for both water and sewer will
be audited to make sure they are correct as dtishe norm to use only one service. Mr.
Garcia said that all billing can be sorted in thistem and his department will make sure
that proper exemptions exist for those not beidigdifor one service or the other. Mr.
Garcia stated that the City has around 2800 cus®arel this will be quite a task.

Mayor Pro Tem Witcher stated the project sounds djkite a job. Mr. Garcia stated that
it will take lots of man power to check all thosestomer accounts that are in question.



Commissioner Lafferty stated that he instigated #ffort due to customers that are not
paying for both water and sewer seemed to be ingdnce and also due to the number
of adjustments being made to utility bills. Mr.fteaty stated that his intent was to make
sure everyone is paying for the services they amegu Mr. Lafferty said he was looking
for a quick identification of everyone that is payifor one service and not another. Mr.
Lafferty wants to make sure that services beingl ase being paid for.

Mr. Garcia stated that it will be easy to sort thestomer database. Mayor Pro Tem
Witcher asked if all these checks need to occur. Garcia responded in the positive.

Ms. Rose stated that her opinion is that the i@tlepolicies should guarantee that every
customer has a process for obtaining servicestatdhose are being checked.

Mr. Garcia stated that in one instance the Watgratenent shut off water to a customer
and there was no way for the office to know of .this

Items From Commissioners

Commissioner Sandoval had no comments.

Mayor Pro Tem Witcher had no comments.

Commissioner Lumpkin thanked all those in attenddoc coming. Mr. Lumpkin stated
that he would like to see an emphasis put on tlaéealent of the Sands Dorsey building
as the Commission did vote to get the building tdown as soon as possible. Mr.
Lumpkin said that even with opposition, the Cityeds to move quickly.

Commissioner Lafferty had no comments.

Mayor Apodaca stated that he was serious whenibelsa City has a good history with
the CDBG program. He stated that when he is inté&S&e, he hears many positive
comments about the City’'s involvement with CDBGgrams.

Executive Sessions

Mayor Pro Tem Witcher made a motion to convene xeddtive Sessions pursuant to
NMSA 1978 10-15-1 (H) (7) regarding threatened @nging litigation, NMSA 1978 10-

15-1 (H) (8) the disposal of water rights, and NM$878 10-15-1 (H) (2) regarding

limited personnel matters. Commissioner Lumpkicoseled the motion. Roll Call:

Sandoval Lafferty Apodaca Lumpkin Witcher
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

The Commission then adjourned in to Executive $essat 7:30 pm.

AT 8:32 p.m. Mayor Pro Tem Witcher made a motiorrdeconvene in Open Session
after Executive Sessions where the only mattersudsed were pending or threatened



litigation, disposal of water rights, and limitecerponnel matters. Commissioner
Lumpkin seconded the motion. Roll Call:

Lafferty Apodaca Lumpkin Witcher Sandoval
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Adjournment

Mayor Pro Tem Witcher made a motion to adjourn @oedhmissioner Lumpkin
seconded the motion. Roll Call:

Apodaca Lumpkin Witcher Sandoval Lafferty
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

The meeting was adjourned at 8:33 p.m.

Antonio Apodaca, Mayor

ATTEST:

Christine Dougherty, City Clerk



